
THE UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING 
 

MINUTES OF THE TRUSTEES 
 

Conference Call Meeting 
Monday, July 27, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Final minutes can be found on the University of Wyoming Board of Trustees website at 
http://www.uwyo.edu/trustees/

http://www.uwyo.edu/trustees/


TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY  
CONFERENCE CALL OF THE BOARD  

MINUTES OF THE TRUSTEES 
 

Monday, July 27, 2015 
4:00 p.m. 

Old Main Boardroom 
Laramie, Wyoming 

AGENDA 
 
Call to Order ....................................................................................................................................1 
 
Roll Call ...........................................................................................................................................1 
 
Discussion/Action Item: 
 

1. Presidential Search: Selection of Search Firm ............................................................... 1 

Adjournment .................................................................................................................................... 2 
 
 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 1 
 
Call to Order 
Trustee President Dave Palmerlee called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Deputy Secretary for the Board of Trustees Shannon Sanchez took roll.   
 
Trustees participating: Dave Bostrom, Larry Gubbels, John MacPherson, Mike Massie, Jeff 
Marsh, John McKinley, Dave Palmerlee, Dick Scarlett, Michelle Sullivan, Dave True, Wava 
Tully. Trustee Mel Baldwin was not in attendance.  Ex-officio Trustees President Dick McGinity, 
and ASUW President Brian Schueler were in attendance.  Ex-officio Trustees Governor Matt 
Mead, Executive Director of the Wyoming Community College Commission Jim Rose, and 
Wyoming Superintendent of Public Instruction Jillian Balow were not in attendance.  Search 
Recruiter Brad Mead also participated on the call.   
 
Discussion/Action Item 
Presidential Search: Selection of Search Firm  
 
Trustee President Palmerlee shared the engagement letters with the search firm and noted that 
Vice President and General Counsel Rick Miller had added standard legal language to the 
document [see attachment A].  Trustee President Palmerlee noted that he and Search Recruiter 
Brad Mead were also on the call with the search firm when negotiating with the search firm. 
Search Recruiter Mead stated that he spoke with Alberto Pimentel to further define his role in the 
process.  He noted that the firm would be involved in the whole process, there would be no 
changes in cost, and that Mr. Pimentel did adjust their engagement in order to clarify expectations.     
 
Trustee President Palmerlee explained how this search requires an aggressive recruiting effort.  
He noted that he, Search Recruiter Mead, and Mr. Pimentel further clarified Search Recruiter 
Mead’s role.  Trustee President Palmerlee asked for questions on the engagement letter.   
 
Trustee Mike Massie asked Search Recruiter Mead if he was comfortable with his role.  Search 
Recruiter Mead responded that he was.  Trustee Massie asked where applicants would submit 
their materials to.  There was discussion on this process.  Search Recruiter Mead noted that all 
nominations would either be contacted by him or the search firm.  It was also noted that the search 
firm would provide the initial screening before sending the applicants to Presidential Search 
Committee #1.   It was noted that the Search Recruiter and Board President will also review 
candidates.  There was a question if the search firm, Search Recruiter or Board President would 
have veto power over any candidates initially, and Search Recruiter Mead clarified that someone 
would follow up with each of the nominees, and that no single person would dismiss a candidate’s 
application.  It was clarified that all candidates would be vetted through the search firm, even if 
the candidate applied directly to the University.   
 
 
Trustee Massie noted that the documents contained a compressed timeline, and proposed having 
candidates on campus in December 2015.  Trustee President Palmerlee explained that the process 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 2 
 
documents contained language that said the timeline could not be delayed, but it could be 
accelerated.  Search Recruiter Mead also explained that Mr. Pimentel’s recommendation was to 
have candidates on campus before the winter break, as top candidates may have competing offers 
at other schools and delaying the process until spring could mean these candidates take alternate 
positions.   
 
Trustee President Palmerlee noted that he made adjustments to the process memo to include 
information stating that the process could be accelerated.  Trustee Palmerlee talked about how the 
selection process would be fluid.  Trustee Massie was concerned with the idea of fluidity, as it 
could lead to a candidate being rushed through the process and may create misperceptions of the 
process.  He noted there needed to be a balance between structure and fluidity in the process.     
 
There was further discussion on a fluid yet structured process.  General Counsel Miller noted 
there were two scenarios, 1) candidates either come to campus at the end of January or the end of 
December, and 2) quality would not be sacrificed for speed.  He noted that UW may lose 
candidates to other positions if they wait until January 2016.   Faculty Senate President Tucker 
Readdy noted if the Trustees proceeded with an accelerated process, they should update their 
search documents that were approved at the July 2015 Retreat as they noted full consideration 
would be given to candidates by a December 1, 2015 deadline.   
 
Trustee Dick Scarlett motioned to approve the agreement as presented; Trustee Gubbels 
seconded.  All trustees were in favor and the vote passed unanimously.   
 
 
Adjournment 
Trustee President Dave Palmerlee adjourned the meeting at 4:29 p.m.  Trustee Palmerlee thanked 
everyone for taking time to participate on the call. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Shannon Sanchez      Laura Wespetal 
Deputy Secretary, Board of Trustees    Senior Administrative Assistant 
  



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 3 
 

Attachment A

 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 4 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 5 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 6 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 7 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 8 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 9 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 10 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 11 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 12 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 13 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 14 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 15 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 16 
 



The University of Wyoming 
Board of Trustees’ Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 – Trustee Conference Call 
Page 17 
 

 


